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Introduction

Scope Statement
This project is a look into the beginning history of the Long Beach Public Library.  This is an important topic for research in that it is a typical story of the boom in libraries in the Carnegie era and in the incredible population growth in California during this time.  Long Beach went from a tiny seaside get-away for people from Los Angeles, to an incorporated city in its own right.  A large part of that transformation was the implementation of city services, including the public library.
Public libraries across the country were going through a period of change during this time.  As Carnegie started giving away library buildings, small towns and large cities began to see the public library as a civic institution, something every proper municipality should have.  California was no different in this idea.  Across California, new libraries were popping up.  Private libraries were being donated and converted to public libraries.  Public libraries themselves were becoming less restrictive in their patronage.  Long Beach Public Library was on the forefront of this, allowing even non-residents to borrow books as long as they had a resident guarantor.

Public libraries were becoming a requirement of any real city, and because of the requirements of the Carnegie grants, were becoming tax supported institutions with minimum levels of funding.  Long Beach Public Library became a free, tax-supported institution in 1902, the same year the city first inquired about a Carnegie grant.

This was also a time where libraries were one of the few places women had a professional role.  All of the early librarians in Long Beach were women.  And the library board had been all women too, until a new city charter in 1907 required that city positions be filled by legal voters, which women could not be at the time.
I plan to research the origins of this institution in the late 19th century through the early part of the 20th century.  I will focus on the beginnings of this library through 1917.  This paper will discuss the development of public libraries in Long Beach (formerly Willmore city) and in nearby Alamitos which is now part of Long Beach.  There will be some discussion of the state of public libraries at the time, both in the United States and in California. 
This paper will be a narrative history of Long Beach public library during its inception from 1895-1917  relating its growth to the civic development and local history of Long Beach.  Being a Long Beach native, I am interested in the history of Long Beach.  The origins of the Long Beach Public Library come at a time when Long Beach was just beginning.  From the incorporation of Long Beach as a city in 1897, to the development of a town, with a City Hall, other public developments, and of course, the public library, this period is fascinating.
This period of time is also a boom for public libraries in general, with the Carnegie grants allowing towns of all sizes across the country to build their own shrine to democracy, a public library.  I will explore the development of Long Beach public library within this broader context of a nation-wide development of public libraries.

Long Beach Public Library: Inception


The turn of the twentieth century was a time of great civic development in the United States.  Across the country towns and cities were growing, especially in the West.  As the railroads reached the west coast, and travel became easier, more and more people decided to seek their fortunes in California and other western states.  With the arrival of so many settlers, it became important for cities to grow and to add civil services including police services, fire services and capital improvements such as road building, drainage and sewer development.  Along with these necessities, cities wanted to attract the “best” people, and made cultural improvements as well, building group gathering places, as well as public libraries.


Public libraries in particular enjoyed a great boon in the early part of the twentieth century, due in large part to the Carnegie library grants.  Carnegie gave grants to build 1,681 public library buildings in 1,412 U.S. towns between 1889 and 1923.  Towns that had no means to build a facility were suddenly able to build large beautiful town centerpieces of culture.  The Carnegie grants also required continued support of those libraries in the form of taxes.  This created a nationwide expectation for free public library services.

The Public Library in California

During this period, California was also experiencing large amounts of civic growth.  In California the growth was even greater for the incredible population growth that occurred during this period.  It became fashionable for a town to have a public library, to prove its upstanding nature and attract tourists and residents.

The very first lending library in California appeared in 1849.  That year, a subscription library started in Monterrey, the State Library was born, and a commercial reading room opened in San Francisco.  Before 1850, most lending libraries in the U.S. had either shareholders or subscribers that paid for the use of the library, or were part of a larger club or fraternal organization.  The first free public library was opened in Peterborough, New Hampshire in 1833.  By the end of 1859 California had all of these types of libraries: subscription based, free, and club-owned.


Lending libraries served two main purposes: inexpensive source of reading material, and somewhere for young men to gather.  In the sate of California, largely populated by gold miners, young men were prone to such activities as hanging out in saloons and gambling houses.  It was thought that libraries would provide a more productive way for them to spend their time.


Between 1851 and 1855, as the original gold rush was diminishing and people decided to stay in California, communities started building civil institutions such as schools and churches.  As more women came to the area, they formed societies to effect the improvement of their towns.  During the 1850’s, association libraries opened all over the state, sometimes open to the public, and sometimes only to members or those that paid a fee.  Some such societies include Negro associations, YMCA’s, Mechanic’s Institutes, Independent Order of Odd Fellows, and the Society of California Pioneers.


In 1878, the California Legislature passed the Rogers Act rising mostly form the movement in San Francisco to create a free public library.  This act allowed public support by incorporated municipalities for the development and running of free libraries and reading rooms.  This law, written specifically for San Francisco (it named the 11 board members), applied to the whole state but because of its specificity, presented problems.


A second Library Law was passed in 1880.  The new law allowed for election of up to five trustees who were authorized to set rules and regulations for the libraries, although authority for property purchase and building erection stayed with the city.
  Under these laws, many association libraries were turned over to cities to start public libraries.  Two main factors correlated with the start of a public library.  In most cases there existed a history of association libraries.  The majority of public libraries also appeared in cities with larger populations.
  Often new libraries existed in donated buildings, but more often in small rented quarters and were often moved into city halls.  The services of these new libraries were often limited to a circulating collection of books and a reading room where books, newspapers and periodicals could be read.


In 1866, the state mandated that school districts provided a library for the use of the students and teachers.  This law was later revised in 1907 to allow traveling libraries to accommodate the schools.
The period between 1889 and 1917 saw a huge growth in the public library system in California and the nation.  “Toward the end of the (19th) century…the movement gain(ed) momentum, spurred on by the general increase in economic wealth, the social concern for education and morality, and the growth in number and size of urban communities.”
  Special library legislation starting with the Rogers Act and subsequent laws passed in 1880, 1901, 1905, and 1905, as well as laws affecting all municipality institutions.
 
This boon for libraries was also a boon for the professionalization of librarianship.  “The work of a new generation of librarians stimulated and directed the expansion of libraries; these libraries, in turn, created a demand for more and better-qualified personnel.”
  Librarians became more that just keepers of books, they became professionals.  Along with this was the increasing importance of library associations.  The American Library Association was started in 1876, and the first meeting of the ALA in California occurred in 1891 where 30 of the 80 attendees were from California.  The Library Association of California (later the California Library Association or CLA) formed in 1898.

Both of these associations helped promoted libraries in California, but could not provide much needed financial support.  As libraries became tax-supported, they dropped subscription fees, but still needed money for buildings and collections.  Many libraries benefited from gifts and donations, although the most worth book donations typically went to large universities rather than public libraries.  Buildings in particular were difficult for libraries to acquire, and libraries were often housed in other buildings, such as city halls and fire houses.

The first Carnegie library building grants in California were granted in 1899, with 121 grants yielding 142 libraries through 1917.
  During this period of time, cities across the nation were benefiting from these grants, and the public library as an institution was also being pushed forward by the rules associated with these grants.  Carnegie required a city to provide a piece of land for the library to be built on, and for the city to provide yearly tax support equaling 10% of the original grant amount.  This provided precedence for municipal tax support for public libraries.
  Whereas in the late 19th century, it was popular opinion that an upstanding community should have a public library, with the rules of the Carnegie grants, the financial support for such institutions was secured in many locations.
The Beginnings of a City


The area that eventually became Long Beach consisted of two large ranchos in the mid-1800’s, Rancho Los Cerritos in the west and Rancho Los Alamitos in the east.  Rancho Los Cerritos was bought by John Temple and Rancho Los Alamitos was bought by Don Abel Stearns in the 1840’s to be run largely as cattle and sheep ranches.  The ranchers grew enough food to support the people and animals on the ranch, and also kept horses.


On September 9, 1850, California became a state.  Cities were growing all over the state.  Land ownership was reevaluated and reaffirmed under the new laws.  The Los Cerritos rancho was confirmed as property of John Temple.

In 1960, a large flood, followed by a prolonged draught through 1864 ruined the cattle industry in the area that would become Long Beach.  Alamitos Ranch lost 50,000 cattle.
  The ranchos were sold to Jotham Bixby (Cerritos) in 1866 and John Bixby (Alamitos) in 1878.  The Bixby brothers ran the ranchos primarily as sheep ranches, selling wool as their trade.
 At one point the ranch housed as many as thirty thousand sheep.


In 1876 the transcontinental railroad reached the Los Angeles area, bringing a new boom to the area, real estate.  In 1881 10,000 acres of Rancho Los Cerritos nearest the Pacific Ocean was subdividedand .  This new subdivision was was managed by William Willmore and known as Willmore City.  Willmore went bankrupt in a few short years, and the area was renamed Long Beach in 1884.


The Methodist Resort Association chose Long Beach for their annual meetings, and the town also became the site of a Methodist Tabernacle.  The church had a strong influence on the area that would affect the culture for years to come.    The city remained dry until 1933 post prohibition.
  In fact, it was an early pastor of the First Congregational Church, Reverend Sydney Kendall that “organized a committee to establish the first public library” in the area.
  


In 1886, part of Rancho Los Alamitos was subdivided into two areas known as Alamitos Beach and Belmont Heights.  Alamitos Beach was annexed by Long Beach in 1905.  In 1908 Belmont Heights, an independent incorporated city itself, voted to join Long Beach influenced by Long Beach’s promise to build a pier there.
  Also in 1886, the first school in the Long Beach School District was built to serve 26 families with 30 children.  The building started as a one story building since it was believed there would never be enough students to warrant the second floor.


The railroad boom across the nation brought large growth to Long Beach.  Because of price wars, train tickets to Los Angeles fell from $25 to $1.  Many people came and did not return east, or only returned to get their families and move to the west coast.  A shuttle that ran from the nearest train station to Long Beach was started by William Willmore.  A set of tracks on which train cars were pulled by horses, the route was washed out several times, and was referred to fondly as the GOP (Get Out and Push) railroad.  Eventually the railroad was mechanized and bought by Southern Pacific Railroad.


Long Beach existed largely as a retirement and tourist town. Even before its incorporation as a city, the community voted and passed municipal bonds for such improvements as a new pier in 1892 and a pavilion/bath house in 1896.  Long Beach, as a city, was incorporated in 1897. 
 


As Long Beach developed, improvements were made all around the city.  In 1903, a double decked pier was built.  In 1905, the original pavilion burned and was replaced with a new auditorium.  In 1907, the harbor was developed, inviting the first tenant, Craig Shipbuilding.  In 1909 a bond was passed to further develop the harbor to accept cargo.  The first cargo arrived in 1911, a load of lumber from Washington state.  Also in 1911, Edison built an electricity generating plant in the harbor area.




The 1910 census showed Long Beach as the fastest growing community in the United States.  From 1900, the population had grown from 2,252 to 17,809.  The 1920 census showed the population at 55,593.  Growth didn’t stop there, in 1921 oil was discovered in the region, and by 1927 the population had reached 145,000.
   An initial Carnegie grant of $12,500 was awarded to Long Beach, but later, based on the incredible growth of the population the grant was increased to $30,000.


From its inception through 1915, Long Beach was governed by a council with a Mayor.  From 1915-1921 they attempted a commission system of government that ultimately did not work and was replaced by a council with a city manager in 1921.
 
Long Beach Public Library

Long Beach was incorporated as a city in 1897.  At this time, there existed a public library only in the most rudimentary form.  Reverend Sidney C. Kendall came to Long Beach and became the pastor of the First Congregational Church.  Here he found a small collection of  books put together by the Woman’s Christian Temperance Union.  He instigated the opening of a reading room with this collection to draw people away from the other gathering place in town, the one saloon.  The library opened on New Year’s Day, 1896 in a “little rough boarded, narrow windowed, one story shack on the ocean front.”
  
The first library opened in January 1, 1896 as a small one story frame building on the south side of Ocean Blvd.  The first librarian was Miss Cora Matthews.  She closed the library later that year after “evicting” youths who “created too much of a disturbance.” 
  This first library was run by the Long Beach Library Association.
  

The dues to join the library were one dollar per year, or twenty-five cents per month.  This however, was not enough to financially support the institution.  Other methods were used to raise money, including book donations, and volunteer service.
  The Ebell club held a lawn party to raise money for a library in 1896.
  The Ebell club was a women’s club founded in Long Beach by Adelaide Tichenor in 1896.  This group lobbied for the right to vote and wider access to education.  The party raised $12.50 for books to populate the tiny new library.
  The library was reopened in late 1896 or early 1897 with Mrs. M.R. Spangler, a war widow, as librarian.
  Mrs. Spangler was paid $10 per month for her services. 

The movement for a new library building was mentioned in papers as early as June of 1897.
  But it ended up sharing quarters with City Hall.
A new city hall was built in 1899.  The council bought the site for $2,000 and the city voted a $9,000 bond to build the building.  The cornerstone was laid on May 24, 1899.  The new building included an extra strong second floor in order to support the weight of a library.  However, the library first occupied an area of the first floor as it was determined the second floor was too spacious for the library’s needs.  The library was moved to the new city hall in 1899, where it would stay until the Carnegie building was finished in 1909.
  The movement of the library into City Hall followed a successful fund-raising campaign.  The Long Beach Library Association turned the library over to the City at the dedication ceremony, Mrs. Spangler was reappointed as librarian, but resigned in December 1899.
  She was replaced by Miss Lila Castle who acted first as a substitute, then as the head of the library.

The Long Beach Library Association continued to run the library until 1901.  The city appointed a library board: Charles Pease, Reverend Sidney Kendall, Mrs. Jennie Reeve, Mrs. William Schilling, and Mrs. Adelaide Tichenor.  The board requested a library tax, and the library became a free tax-supported institution on January 1, 1902.  The tax originally raised $250 a year.  In 1902, the use increased from 5,915 to 20,662 books.

Miss Lila Castle brought her strongest passions to the library, and in doing so made the institution a revered one in Long Beach in those early years.
“According to the report made by Miss Castle to the Board yesterday, the Library has just closed by far the best year in its history….Out of all the books handled only two have been lost and replaces.  For these excellent results (increased use of the library) much credit is due the present Library Board and the librarian; Miss Castle.  They have given the business of the library the same careful attention they would expend on their private business and the result is seen in the returns.”

Growth of the Library

The library board discussed the possibility of obtaining a Carnegie grant for a library building, and a letter of request was sent to Carnegie by the city council in 1902.
  It would be seven years before the building was built and opened to the public.
The library board saw the need for support for the growing library.  In 1903 the board purchased a supply of illustrated literature for the children and created a children’s reading room.  1000 new books were purchased and a complete catalog issued.
  They also hired Miss Victoria Ellis as librarian.  A graduate of the Los Angeles Public Library training class, she brought expertise with her no previous librarian had possessed.  As librarian, her first duty was to move the library from the first floor to the second floor of city hall, where it would have more room, a move that was completed on February 12, 1904. 
  The new second floor library opened on February 11, 1904.  The announcement in the local paper stated: “The Public Library is now snugly hived in its new quarters upstairs in the City Hall and Miss Ellis, the librarian, assisted by the Board of Trustees are keeping open house this afternoon and tonight.”
 
From 1905 to 1909, the library’s volumes increased from 4,562 to 15,088.  The circulation increased from 46,624 volumes to 144,275 volumes.  In 1909 the library had five employees, Miss Victoria Ellis (Librarian), Miss Ida G. Munson (Cataloguer), Miss May Brown (1st Assistant Librarian), Miss Laura E. Cadmus (2nd Assistant Librarian), and Miss Elizabeth Riddell (3rd Assistant Librarian), and nearly 5,000 cardholders.

The growth of the library and its use called for increased funding.  Reverend Kendall of the library board requested an increase in tax funding, and the city council approved a $3,000 per year tax. 

This was a time when most library workers were women.  In 1907, there was in the Long Beach public library, a “Guide for Female Librarians.”  It stated ten simple rules for librarians to follow:

“Do not get married.

Do not leave town without Library Board permission.

Do not keep company with men.

Be home between the hours of 8pm and 6am.

Do not smoke or imbibe.

Do not loiter around ice cream shops.

Do not dress in bright colors.

Do not dye you hair.

Do not wear any dress more than 2” above the ankle.

Do not get into any carriage with any man except your father or brother.”

While this seems absurd to us now, it was the rules of the times.  Perhaps these rules were involved in the later dubious resignation of Miss Victoria Ellis.


Another disturbing event in regards to this feminized profession also occurred in 1907.  The city of Long Beach adopted a new charter.  This charter had a clause in regards to selection of the library board, and allowed only qualified voters of the city.  This did not include women.  “Friends invaded a meeting of the charter framers and explained the situation and the objectionable clause was eliminated.”
  Unfortunately it was later discovered that an umbrella clause eliminated from all city offices non-qualified voters, and the three women who had served the library since the beginning: Mrs. Adelaide Tichenor, Mrs. William Schilling, and Mrs. Jennie Reeve were not allowed to serve on the new board of the library through the building of the Carnegie library they fought so hard to acquire.  

The Carnegie Building

The Carnegie negotiations were slow, as the city was having a hard time finding a location for the building.  The proposed site was the Pacific Park.  This proposal met with two major problems.

The first was that the land had been deeded to the city to be used solely for “park purposes,” and so a quit claim deed was needed from the Long Beach Land and Water Company.  This was granted to the city.  The request was resent to Carnegie and a $12,500 grant was awarded.

The second problem was Minnie the whale.  On May 20, 1897, a whale washed up on the beach in Long Beach.  It was determined that the 65 foot skeleton should be mounted as an attraction for visitors.  Mr. William Haskins, taxidermist, mounted the skeleton which was later placed in its own building in Pacific Park.
  The proposal of putting the library in this park would require the removal of the whale skeleton.  
Much discussion ensued among the people of Long Beach.  From 1903, at first proposal, the idea met “general favor”
, but over the next 5 years a struggle ensued.  In 1907, two residents threatened to sue to save the park: 
“In speaking of the matter Saturday, one of the objectors said: ‘My protest is based upon the belief that the erection of a library- or any other building- in the park will largely destroy its beauty and usefulness.  It would simply eat the heart out of the reservation, and transform into a semi-commercial mart what should be  a spot for rest and isolation from business. There are other suitable locations for a library, but we will never secure a substitute for the park.’”

Other proposals included moving the whale bones, or even displaying them in the library’s basement as the start of a museum.
  The residents of nearby Alamitos even offered to take the library off Long Beach’s hands if finding a location proved too difficult: 

“Alamitos residents are prepared to serve notice on their western neighbors that there will be no necessity of removing the modern bungalow wherein reposes the bones of the sacred whale from its confined in Pacific park.  The revered mastodon can remain there and the new Carnegie library will find a welcome home in Bixby park, where there is ample room, both for the seat of education and the recreation and pleasure of the masses.”

The Alamitos residents made proposition to Long Beach city council, even offering to donate land for a new city hall.


After it was deemed that the park would be the location, Carnegie was beseeched for a larger grant, seeing as the city already supported the library with $3,000 a year.  The Carnegie grants required the city to give 10% of the grant amount each year in support of the library.  Long Beach already had the support for a $30,000 grant
, and the original grant was based on the 1900 census whereas Long Beach’s population had increased significantly since then.

The grant was increased to $30,000 and F.P. Burnham of Los Angeles was made architect, and in July 1908, the contract was awarded to Weymouth Crowell for $34,400.  The cornerstone was laid on September 5, 1908 
 and on May 29, 1909 the Carnegie library building opened.
  The final cost of the building has been reported as high as $45,000.

The dedication ceremony for the new library took place on June 14, 1909. The ceremony was described in the next day’s paper:

“Mayor C. H. Windham’s brief opening address told only of the purpose for which the hundreds gathered.  He introduced Dr. F.M. Rogers, who invoked the blessing of the Most High on the dedication in fitting words.  

Mrs. Mitchell, pianist, then accompanied a quartette …in a way that was appreciated, as shown by the applause.

…Following the ceremonies in the open, the doors of the library were thrown back and the public received in the beautiful new structure by Miss Victoria Ellis and the library staff, all in white gowns.”

The Library: the Next Ten Years

Long Beach Public Library grew, and in time expanded by adding branches.  In Alamitos Beach a nearby community to Long Beach, women had come together to found the Alamitos Library Association.  In 1897, Florence Bixby of this group and her husband donated land for a library.  A small building called Library Hall was built there.  This later became the site of the Alamitos branch of the Long Beach Public Library.
  The Alamitos Library Association donated the site to Long Beach and it was accepted February 10, 1910 and became the first branch of the Long Beach Public Library, which it still is today.

Miss Victoria Ellis remained the librarian through all of these exciting developments.  Under her watch the library circulation increased from 74,939 volumes in 1906 to 171,898 volumes by 1910. 
  A report she made in 1913 was described in an article titled “Literary Centre of the Pacific Coast?” in the Daily Telegram: “This report shows Long Beach a leader in a ratio of reading population, having one of the largest public library circulation per capita of any other city or town in the United States…This is a record that cannot be equaled or even approached by any other city of the same size in the union.”
  

Merely one year later, in February of 1914, Miss Ellis resigned.  This came as a shock to the Long Beach residents: “The unanimity and alacrity with which this resignation was accepted (by the library board) will astound the thousands of warm friends throughout the whole of Long Beach who admire and respect Miss Ellis, both for her masterful handling of the affairs of the library during ten years of wonderful development and because of her delightful personality”
  In her resignation she stated that “the Library Commission lacked confidence in her ability to direct the work of the library, she feels that back of the board’s apparent opposition to her is an insidious personal antagonism toward her which has existed almost ever since she took up the duties of librarian in this city ten years ago.” 

Powerful city figures Mr. and Mrs. Jotham Bixby attempted to convince Miss Ellis to stay, and head a petition to reinstate her, but she apparently chose not to follow this route. 
 

She was replaced by Miss Zaidee Brown, a graduate of the New York State Library School.  Miss Brown was well trained in library organization and reorganized the technical methods of the library, and also started new programs such as school libraries and hospital service.
 Miss Brown was appointed on April 15, 1914, and took her position on April 27. She commented that the library was well organized and well served by the community and in turn served the community well.

“At the time of the 1910 census, Long Beach was declared the fastest growing community in the country.  Its population had grown from 2,252 in 1900 to 17,809 in 1910.”

By 1915 the Long Beach Public Library had a beautiful Carnegie building.  It had a collection of 36,934 volumes with 370,649 volumes circulating that year.  The library had one full branch (Alamitos) and two part-time branches housed in schools one afternoon a week.  In addition there were 45 school libraries (collections of 25-30 books rotated around the schools).

This growth continued and continues still.  These early pioneers used their passion for free knowledge and built what has become an 11 branch system that serves half a million Long Beach residents. The Long Beach Public Library as it exists today stands on the shoulders of those who came before, who saw a need and built an institution.
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Appendix A

Statement on Sources

There was an abundance of information, although not very well organized.  Newspaper articles only report the news, and sometimes it is very hard to find the background, that which the readers of that time would have just known.  I would have liked to find out more about Miss Ellis, and the build-up of such antagonism between her and the board.
One of the most interesting things I found was the city auditors reports, which generally included a few pages strictly on the library, its board members, staff, circulation and volumes purchased were all included along with revenue and expenditures.  They also often included a short narrative of the happening in the library that year.  Unfortunately the Long Beach Historical Society did not have all of the years sequentially, and none before 1909.  Perhaps there were none before then, or whoever collected them started after that date.  
A problem was in the many secondary sources, and even primary sources (newspaper articles) that contradicted each other in terms of numbers.  The Carnegie grant was listed as everything from $10,000 to $12,500 plus $30,000.  It was very interesting to see which parts of the story would show up in each source.
Appendix B
Chronology
1895
· Earliest Long Beach area library supported by the WCTU in lecture room of the  Congressional Church based on donation of books from Mrs. Jotham Bixby, Sr.
· Long Beach Library Association (entirely women) formed from WCTU
1897
· Long Beach incorporated as a city
· Alamitos Library Association opened a new library building on land donated by Jotham Bixby Sr. of the Alamitos Land Co. at 1936 E Third St. which grew to a collection of 160 by 1904

1899

· Library moved to Long Beach City Hall at 15 Pine St.

1901
· Formal organization of LBPL

1902
· Became a free and tax-supported library
· Carnegie inquiry first made
· 20,662 circulations in 1902 as compared to 5915 in 1901
1903

· December – Expert Librarian Victoria Ellis hired

1904
· Carnegie grant of $12,500 offered

· February 11 – Library moved to upstairs in new City Hall

1905

· Long Beach puts in request to increase Carnegie grant based on growth of the town
· August – California State Librarian determines LBPL is providing more service per resource than others in the state, actually circulating more books in a month than the library owned.
1906

· February 8 – Library trustees decide to accept $15,500 Carnegie grant while waiting for response on increase
1907

· Carnegie approves increase in grant to $30,000
· October – LBPL opens first branch library in the west end, in the children’s library room of the Terminal school with 100 books from the main library.  It was open half an hour each weekday after school and run by the school principal.
· December – Women who had been in charge of the library for several years are no longer allowed to act as board members because of a new city charter that requires city positions to be filled with legal voters.

· December - Library board discussed removal of whale skeleton from the park proposed as Carnegie building site.  City turmoil over where to put the library.  Nearby Alamitos offers to take it.
1908

· September 5 – Carnegie building corner stone laid in Pacific Park (later renamed Lincoln Park)
1909

· May 29 - Carnegie building opened at a cost of $34,000

· June 15 -  Carnegie building dedicated

1910

· February 10 – Alamitos Library Association donated its library with 500 books to the City of Long Beach as a branch library (a new building was erected on the spot in 1929)

· March 17 – Andrew Carnegie visits Long Beach and the library, is impressed.
1912

· November – People who are not land owners in Long Beach are permitted to use the library if they get a land owner to sign their card as guarantor

1914  
· Library is open 12 hours a day, circulation reaches 298,325 an average of over 6 per capita

· February – Victoria Ellis resigns over disagreement with the board much to the consternation of the public

· April – Zaidee Brown succeeds Miss Ellis

1916 
· Library has 40,819 volumes and a budget of $25,135

1917

· April – Zaferia branch opened at Loma and Anaheim
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